Part I: General

1.1 Name

The full name of this organization shall be "Endeavour, House V Students' Association, Hong Kong University of Science and Technology Students' Union". In Chinese, "香港科技大學學生會社五卓毅學生會". Hereinafter referred to as the Association.

1.2 Logo

The official logo of the Association shall be the following:



1.3 Color

The official color of the Association shall be yellow and the auxiliary color shall be blue.

1.4 Goals

The goals of the Association shall be:

- a. To promote cooperation and friendship among its members.
- b. To promote interest in social, cultural, music and sports events among its members.
- c. To promote and maintain the standards of welfare and privileges of its members.
- d. To unite hall and non-hall members by providing them with benefits and activities to build up House V spirit and cultivate a sense of belonging within House V.
- e. To unite the hall residents and promote the standards of hall life.
- f. To develop HKUST into five houses where each House has its own style, spirit and traditions. Enhancing the House Spirit through Inter-House competitions.

1.5 Official Language

Chinese and English shall be the official languages of the Association, enjoying equal status. Either or both may be used in official meetings, within documents and functions. In case of any discrepancy in any interpretation and unless otherwise specified, the English version shall be referred to.

1.6 Session

The Session of the Association shall be defined as commencing immediately after the Annual General Meeting and terminating immediately after the succeeding Annual General Meeting.

1.7 Honorary Advisor

The current Residence Master of UG Hall V (PG Hall II) shall be the Honorary Advisor of the Association.

1.8 Responsibility

The Association is responsible for all matters and policies affecting the interests of House V students as a whole.

1.9 Affiliation

The Association shall be affiliated to the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology Students' Union and shall not apply for any other affiliations within HKUST.

Part II: Membership

2.1 Full Membership

1. Eligibility

a. All full time students currently registered in the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and recognized as House V students by the Student Affairs Office shall be eligible to apply for Full Membership of the Association.

- b. To be full members of the Association, students should be the full members of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology Students' Union. Students who are non-hall residents shall pay the membership fees and students who are hall residents shall pay both the membership fees and House residential fees.
- c. No application of House V Membership will be accepted after fall semester of each academic year, but the right of final decision is reserved by the executive committee.

2. Privilege

- a. Shall be entitled to represent House V in any House competitions or activities.
- b. Have the right to vote at all General elections or General meetings conducted by the Association.
- c. Have the right to hold office of the Association.
- d. Shall be entitled to enjoy all the facilities of House V, and to take part in all house activities and functions.

3. Obligation

- a. To follow the Constitution of the Association.
- b. To follow the resolution(s) of the General Polling and of General Meetings.

2.2 Honorary Membership

1. Eligibility

The current Residence Master, Residential Life Officer and all Hall Tutors of UG Hall V (PG Hall II) shall be ex-officio honorary members of the

Association. Any other person recommended by the Executive Committee shall also be eligible for Honorary Membership and pass by AGM.

2. Privilege

- a. To make use of all services and facilities provided by the Association.
- b. To attend all the Meetings of the Association but only have speaking right.
- 3. Obligation
 - a. To follow the Constitution of the Association.
 - b. To follow the resolution(s) of the General polling and of General Meetings.

2.3 Life Membership

1. Eligibility

All past executive committee shall be the Life members of the Association after graduate and all past members who have been members of the Association for not less than one year shall be eligible to apply for Life member and approved by current session executive committee and UG Hall V (PG Hall II) Residence Master.

2. Privilege

- a. To make use of all services and facilities provided by the Association.
- b. To attend all the Meetings of the Association but only have speaking right.
- 3. Obligation
 - a. To follow the Constitution of the Association
 - b. To follow the resolution(s) of the General Polling and of General Meetings.

2.4 Honorary Life Membership

1. Eligibility

Any person recommended by the Executive Committee shall be eligible for Honorary Life Membership and pass by AGM.

2. Privilege

- a. To make use of all services and facilities provided by the Association.
- b. To attend all the Meetings of the Association but only have speaking right.

3. Obligation

- a. To follow the Constitution of the Association
- b. To follow the resolution(s) of the General Polling and of General Meetings.

2.5 Assigned Membership

- 1. Shall not be entitled to represent House V in any competitions or activities.
- 2. Have no right to be vote at all General Polling or General Meetings conducted by the Association.
- 3. Have no right to hold office of the Association.

2.6 Associate Membership

1. Eligibility

Any students who have paid the membership fees but are not the full members of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology Students' Union

2. Privilege

- a. Shall be entitled to represent House V in any House competitions or activities.
- b. To attend all the meetings of the Association but only have speaking rights

- c. Have no right to vote at all General Polling or General Meeting conducted by the Association
- d. Have no right to hold office of the Association
- e. Shall be entitled to enjoy all the facilities of House V, and take part in all house activities and functions.

3. Obligation

- a. To follow the Constitution of the Association
- b. To follow the resolution(s) of the General Polling and of General Meetings

Part III: General Meeting

3.1 Conditions

3.1.1 Authority

- 1. The resolution(s) of a General Meeting have the highest authority in the Association. The resolution(s) of a General Meeting can be revoked only by a subsequent General Meeting or by General Polling.
- 2. The resolution(s) of a General Meeting shall be followed by all members of the Association.

3.1.2 General meeting Regulations

1. Chairperson

- ♦ The Chairperson of the Association shall chair the General Meeting.
- In the absence of the Chairperson, the Internal Vice-Chairperson shall preside in a General Meeting. If the Internal Vice-Chairperson is absent, the Executive Committee members present shall elect one of themselves to preside the General Meeting.
- ♦ The Chairperson shall not have a right to vote or to second a motion.
- ♦ The Chairperson shall have a casting vote.
- The Chairperson shall have the right to invite any person who is not a Full Member of the Association to speak in a General Meeting.

2. Secretary

The Internal General Secretary of the Association shall be responsible for preparing the agenda and minutes of the General meeting.

3. Full Members

Only Full members shall have the right to move or second a motion and to vote in the General Meeting.

3.1.3 Voting

- 1. Any motion, other than the amendments to the Constitution of the Association, shall be recognized only if there is a simple majority voting in favor.
- 2. Any motion to amend the Constitution of the Association shall be recognized only if there is more than a two-third majority voting in favor.

3.2 Annual General Meeting

1. Occurrence

The Session shall be held within seventy days after Spring Semester starts. The Executive Committee Members of the current session and the Steering Committee or the Chairperson and the Financial Secretary of the previous session shall attend the Annual General Meeting.

Notice

- The date of an Annual General Meeting shall be decided and the announced by the Executive Committee at least five days beforehand.
- The agenda of an Annual General Meeting shall state whether there is any other agenda item in the meeting and be posted at least five days beforehand.
- ♦ Amendment(s) to the agenda shall be posted at least three days beforehand.
- ♦ All notices shall be posted on the notice board on every common room in the UG Hall V (PG Hall II) and on the Atrium.

3. Quorum

Not less than fifty Full Members of the Association shall form a quorum of an Annual General meeting. If a quorum is not reached within an hour of the time scheduled for the commencement of the Annual General Meeting, the meeting shall be adjourned to a day in the following week, a quorum is still not reached at that meeting, all Full Members present shall form a quorum.

4. Business

a. To receive and adopt the minutes of the previous Annual General Meeting together with the minutes of any Extraordinary Meeting(s), which may have been held since the previous Annual General Meeting. b. To receive and adopt the Annual Report of the Executive Committee for the previous session of the

Association.

- c. To receive and adopt the Financial Secretary's report which shall include an audited balance sheet and other financial statements of the current session of the Association.
- d. To discuss and vote on any amendments to the Constitution of the Association.
- e. To introduce and inaugurate the Executive Committee members for the coming session.
- f. To receive and adopt the annual budget and the year plan of the Executive Committee for the coming session.
- g. To introduce the Honorary Advisor of the Association for the coming session.
- h. To discuss other agenda item(s) not stated on the agenda upon the consent of more than one-half of the Full Members present in the meeting.
- i. No A.O.B. other than those matters listed in the agenda can be discussed in the Annual General Meeting.

3.3 Extraordinary General Meeting

1. Occurrence

- The Executive Committee shall have the right to convene an Extraordinary General Meeting for any purpose it considers appropriate within the goals of the Association.
- ♦ An Extraordinary General Meeting shall be convened by the Chairperson of the Association upon a requisition signed by not less than SEVENTY-FIVE Full members of the Association; such a requisition shall also specify the objective(s) of the proposed meeting.

2. Notice

Notice of an Extraordinary General Meeting, together with the agenda of the Meeting, shall be posted five days beforehand

The notice shall be posted on the notice board in every common room in the UG Hall V (PG Hall II) and in the Atrium.

3. Quorum

- a. Not less than thirty Full Members of the Association shall form a quorum of an Extraordinary General Meeting.
- b. If a quorum is not reached within an hour of the time scheduled for the commencement of the Extraordinary General Meeting, the meeting shall be adjourned to the following week. If a quorum is still not reached at that meeting, all Full Members present shall form a quorum.

4 Business

Business not stated on the agenda shall not be discussed in any Extraordinary General Meeting without the consent of more than one half of the Full Members present.

3.4 Procedure at Annual General Meeting and Extraordinary General Meeting

- 1. The General Meeting shall be postponed in case of absence of the quorum for not more than an hour. The date of the postponed meeting shall be determined by the Chairperson and the announcement of the postponed meeting shall be made in accordance with the Constitution.
- 2. No resolution shall be passed at Extraordinary General Meeting other than the resolution specified in the notice of meeting. A resolution may be amended with the consent of a majority of the Full Members present but no amendment shall be permitted which has the effect of substantially altering the meaning or intent of the original resolution. The chairperson shall not put to meeting any amendment which he/she considers to have such effect.
- 3. At any General Meeting a motion put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on a show of hands, unless the meeting decides on a procedural motion to vote on the motion by secret ballot.

Part IV: General Polling

4.1 Authority

- 1. The resolution(s) of General Polling shall have the same authority as that of a General Meeting.
- 2. The resolution(s) of General Polling can only be revoked by a subsequent General Meeting.
- 3. The resolution(s) of General Polling shall be followed by all members of the Association.

4.2 Occurrence

- General Polling shall be held and conducted by the Chairperson of the Association upon the request of the Executive Committee.
- 2. The Chairperson of the Association shall conduct General Polling if it is requested by not less than fifty Full Members of the Association.

4.3 Notice

Notice of General Polling and the motion(s) to be decided shall be posted at least five days beforehand. The notice shall be posted on the notice board on every common room in the PG Hall II and in the Atrium.

4.4 Voting

- 1. A secret ballot shall be adopted.
- 2. Only Full Members of the Association shall have the right to vote.
- 3. Voting shall take place at polling station(s), which shall be open for at least twelve hours on the day of polling.
- 4. Counting of votes shall be conducted within forty-eight hours after the closure of voting and a provisional result shall be announced by the Returning Officer within this period. If no complaints are received, the provisional result shall then be declared to be official result.
- 5. Any complaints shall be made in writing within forty-eight hours to the Chairperson of Election Board after the announcement of the provisional result.
- 6. If the complaint(s) is/are valid after investigation, the provisional result shall not be regarded as the official result and re-polling will be held within seven days.
- 7. The Executive Committee shall call for a meeting within seven days, after the announcement of the provisional result, to decide.
- 8. The decisions of the Executive Committee shall be announced immediately after all the complaint(s) has/have been considered.
- 9. The result of a General Polling shall be regarded as valid, unless if there is less than fifty valid votes.

4.5 Returning Officer

The Executive Committee shall invite a staff member from Student Affairs Office, the Residence Master of UG Hall V (PG Hall II) or the representatives of House I to House IV to act as the Returning Officers. The duty of Returning Officer is to monitor

the process of counting of votes and announce the provisional result of voting.

Part V: Executive Committee

5.1 Composition of Executive Committee

The Executive Committee shall consist of the following and the minimum number of office bearers at any time shall be at least four:

- a. Chairperson
- b. Internal Vice-Chairperson
- c. External Vice-Chairperson
- d. Hall Affairs Vice-Chairperson
- e. Internal General Secretary
- f. External General Secretary
- g. Financial Secretary
- h. Welfare Secretary
- i. Publication Secretary
- j. Recreation Secretary
- k. Sports Secretary
- 1. Music Secretary
- m. Public Relations Secretary
- n. Internal Relations Secretary
- o. Hall Affairs Secretary
- p. Current Affairs Secretary
- q. Promotion Secretary
- r. Administration Secretary
- s. Marketing Secretary
- t. Database Management Secretary
- u. Social Secretary

5.2 Authorities and Responsibilities

The Honorary advisor shall give advice to Executive Committee on any of the undertakings of the Association. The Executive Committee shall:

- 1. Represent the Association in all matters.
- 2. Have the right to appoint Sub-Committee(s) of the Executive Committee whenever deemed necessary.
- 3. Have the right to interpret the Constitution of the Association, which based on the interpretation of HKUST Students' Union Council.
- 4. Achieve the objectives of the Association.
- 5. Handle the daily affairs of the Association.
- 6. Implement the resolution(s) of any General Polling and General Meetings.

5.3 Duties of Individual members of Executive Committee

- 1. The Chairperson shall be responsible for:
 - a. Being the chief executive of the Association.

- b. Representing the Executive Committee in all affairs.
- c. Presiding at all meetings of the Association.
- 2. The Internal Vice-Chairperson shall be responsible for:
 - a. Assisting the Chairperson in all internal affairs of the Association.
 - b. Acting as ex-office Chairperson in the absence of the Chairperson.
- 3. The External Vice-Chairperson shall be responsible for assisting the Chairperson in all external affairs of the Association.
- 4. The Hall Affairs Vice-Chairperson shall be responsible for assisting the chairperson in all hall affairs of the Association. He/ She should be a current UG Hall V (PG Hall II) resident in his/her tenure. In case of forfeiture of his/her hall place, the position should be taken up by another UG Hall V (PG Hall II) resident who is a Full Member of the association.
- 5. The Internal General Secretary shall be responsible for:
 - a. Keeping all records, except the financial reports, of the Association.
 - b. Taking the minutes for all General Meetings and Executive Committee Meetings.
 - c. Preparing the agenda for all General Meetings and Executive Committee Meetings.
- 6. The External General Secretary shall be responsible for;
 - a. Handling external duties including preparing correspondence for the Association.
 - b. Assisting the Internal General Secretary and External Vice-Chairperson.
- 7. The Financial Secretary shall be responsible for all the financial matters of the Association including keeping financial books and preparing Financial Reports.
- 8. The Welfare Secretary shall be responsible for promoting the general welfare of the members of the Association.
- 9. The Publication Secretary should be responsible for preparing the publication of the Association.
- 10. The Recreation Secretary shall be responsible for organizing recreational activities, except the sports activities, of the Association.
- 11. The Sports Secretary shall be responsible for organizing the sports activities of the Association.
- 12. The Music Secretary shall be responsible for organizing the music activities of the Association.
- 13. The Public Relations Secretary shall be responsible for:
 - a. Handling complaints and suggestions raised by the member(s) of the Association.
 - b. Improving the relations of the Association with the public.
- 14. The Internal Relations Secretary shall be responsible for:
 - a. Promoting the internal cooperation of the Executive Committee.
 - b. Informing other Executive Committee members of the important information concerning the Association.
- 15. The Hall Affairs Secretary shall be responsible for:
 - a. Promoting the interests of the members who are hall residents of the Association.
 - b. Assisting the formation, the organization and the coordination of the UG Hall V (PG Hall II) floor committees. He/ She should be a current UG Hall V (PG Hall II) resident in his/ her tenure. In case of forfeiture of his/ her hall place, the position should be taken up by another UG Hall V (PG Hall II) resident who is a full Member of the association.
- 16. The Current Affairs Secretary shall be responsible for promoting the interests of the members who are not hall residents of the Association.
- 17. The Promotion Secretary shall be responsible for promoting the activities organized by the Association.
- 18. The Administration Secretary shall be responsible for executing the administrative work of the Association.
- 19. The Database Management Secretary shall be responsible for:
 - a. Managing the computerized database of the Association.
 - b. Providing computing services to assist other Executive Committee members.
- 20. The Social Secretary shall be responsible for handling social affairs of the Association.

5.4 Sub-Committee

- 1. The Executive Committee shall have the authority to appoint or approve members of any Sub-Committee.
- 2. The Executive Committee shall have the authority to delegate power, normally available to the Executive Committee, to a Sub-Committee for any purpose.

5.5 Session of Executive Committee

The session of an Executive Committee shall commence at the Inauguration conducted at the Annual General Meeting and ease at the Inauguration of the succeeding Executive Committee conducted at the succeeding Annual General Meeting.

5.6 Executive Committee Meeting

- 1. The Executive Committee shall meet at least four times in each semester and at other times as it is deemed necessary.
- 2. The Executive Committee meeting shall be convened by the Chairperson or in his/ her absence by the Internal Vice-Chairperson. If the Internal Vice-Chairperson is absent, the Executive Committee members present shall elect one of themselves to preside as the Chairperson.

- 3. Each Executive Committee Member, except the Chairperson, shall be given one vote. If there is an equal number of votes for and against a motion, the Chairperson shall have a casting vote.
- 4. Two-thirds of the Executive Committee members shall form the quorum of the meeting.

5.7 Resignation of the Executive Committee Member

- 1. Process of resignation
 - a. Any Executive committee member who wishes to resign shall inform all other Executive Committee members and in writing at least fourteen days before the effective date of resignation.
 - b. A notice concerning the reason and the effective date of resignation shall be posted within two days after informing current Executive Committee members.
 - c. Another notice concerning the resignation shall post to all full members fourteen days after informing the current Executive Committee members.
- 2. Any Executive Committee member, having committed any infringement of the Constitution of the Association, used the name of the Association in illegal or corrupt acts, or been found negligent for his/ her duties, may be requested by the Executive Committee to resign at an Extraordinary General Meeting.
- 3. Should the Chairperson resign, an Extraordinary General Meeting shall be convened by the Internal Vice-Chairperson to elect a new Chairperson among the Executive Committee members.
- 4. A vacancy in the Executive committee, other than that of the Chairperson, can be filled by any Full Member of the Association appointed by the Executive committee.

5.8 Dissolution of Executive Committee

- 1. The Executive Committee shall be dissolved if:
 - a. The Chairperson and the Internal Vice-Chairperson resign from office at the same time, or
 - b. More than three Executive Committee members resign from office at the same time.
- An Extraordinary General Meeting shall be convened by the remaining Executive Committee members of the Association to discuss the follow-up arrangements.
- 3. Should a re-election of the Executive Committee be held, it shall follow the same rules and regulations in Part IV.

PART VI: House Representative:

6.1 Duties

The House Representative, who is a House V Full member, shall represent all House V students in the HKUST Students' Union Council.

6.2 Nomination

- 1. The House representative should be nominated and seconded by a Full Member of the Association and should be elected through an open election. All House V Full members have the right to vote and to be nominated.
- 2. The date of the nomination of House V representative should occur within 7 days after the election of the Executive Committee and the election should occur within 7 days after the nomination of House V representative.
- 3. In the event of only one nomination at the close of nominations, that person shall be declared as elected.

6.3 Vacancy

The House Representative shall be kept vacant if that of Vista, House IV Students' Association in the previous session is vacant.

PART VII: Election

7.1 Purpose

The purpose of the Election is to elect the Executive Committee and the House Representative for the following session.

7.2 Election board

- 1. The Executive Committee of the current session shall be responsible for the formation of the Election Board.
 - a. It should be formed at least seven days before the nomination period starts and it will be dismissed when the AGM is completed.
 - b. It shall be consist of the Chairperson, who shall act as the chairperson of the election board, Financial Secretary and one current session Executive Committee member and three other board members who are House V Full members
- 2. Full Members who are nominated candidates of the Association or seconders of the nominated cabinet shall not be the members of the Election Board.

- 3. Duties of the Election Board
 - a. To conduct all the activities concerning the Election, including the counting the ballots, announcing the results of the election, and accepting or rejecting complaints.
 - b. To examine the eligibility of candidates and to approve or disapprove the nomination of candidates within three days after receiving their applications.
 - c. To abide by the Election Regulations and Rules in accordance with the Constitution.
 - d. To introduce a maximum amount of expenses allowed for each cabinet or candidate.

7.3 Nomination

- 1. Nominations shall be in form of cabinets.
- Each cabinet shall compose at least twelve candidates. The permission vacancies do not include the following posts:
 - a. The Chairperson.
 - b. The Internal Vice-Chairperson.
 - c. The External Vice-Chairperson.
 - d. The Hall Affairs Vice-Chairperson.
 - e. The Internal General Secretary.
 - f. The External General Secretary.
 - g. The Financial Secretary.
 - h. The Welfare Secretary.
 - i. The Sports Secretary.
 - i. The Music Secretary.
 - k. The Hall Affairs Secretary.
 - 1. The Promotion Secretary.
- 3. All nominees have to be House V Full members.
- 4. Each cabinet shall have a name.
- 5. No candidate can be nominated for more than one post.
- 6. The cabinet shall submit their nomination on a prescribed form to election board before the closure of the nomination period. Each candidate must be seconded by at least one Full Member who does not belong to the cabinet he/ she nominates for. Each form submitted shall contain the name of the cabinet, the student number of each candidate and his/ her respective seconder and the respective signature of each seconder.
- 7. Nomination of candidates for the posts open election may be made from the day of announcement of the election date to seven days before the date of the election by posting a notice on the notice board on every common room in the UG Hall V (PG Hall II) and in the Atrium.
- 8. In case there is no nomination received, the Annual General Meeting shall resolve the matter.

7.4 Voting

- 1. Only Full Members of the Association shall possess the right to vote
- 2. A secret ballot shall be adopted in the Election.
- 3. Voting shall take place at polling station(s) which shall be open for at least twelve hours on the day of polling.
- 4. Counting of votes shall be conducted within forty-eight hours after the closure of voting and a provisional result shall be announced by the Returning Officer within this period. If no complaints are received, the provisional result shall then be declared as the official result.
- 5. Any complaint shall be made in writing within forty-eight hours after the announcement of the provisional result.
- 6. If the complaint(s) is/are valid after investigation, the provisional result shall not be regarded as the official result and re-polling will be held within seven days.
- 7. The Election Board shall call for a meeting within seven days after the announcement of the provisional result to
- 8. The result of the Election shall be regarded as valid, unless the number of vote cast is less than 25% of the total Full Membership of the Association.
- 9. In case of two or more cabinets, only one cabinet will be elected by simple majority of valid votes.
- 10. In case of only one cabinet being nominated, the cabinet must receive more than fifty percent of the valid votes (votes collected minus void votes).
- 11. An abstained vote will not be counted in the selection of two or more cabinets.

7.5 Follow-up

- 1. Conditions under which Follow-up arrangements shall be made:
 - a. In case of misconduct of any proposed candidate of the cabinet,
 - b. In case of one cabinet, the cabinet is not successful in receiving a simple majority of valid votes, or
 - c. In case of no nomination for the cabinet during the nomination period is received.
- 2. An Extraordinary General Meeting shall then be convened by the previous Chairperson of the Association to

discuss the follow-up arrangement.

3. Should a re-election be held, it shall follow the same rules and regulations in this section.

7.6 Re-election

A re-election shall be held in the event of a tie occurring in Election or upon the request of follow up arrangement. In the event of tie re-occurring in the re-election, then one cabinets hall is elected by a lot.

PART VIII: FINANCE

8.1 Financial Year

The financial period shall follow the Session of the Association.

8.2 Budget

- 1. At the beginning of each financial period, a financial budget shall be prepared and presented by the incoming Financial Secretary to the Annual General Meeting for adoption.
- 2. The budget proposed shall include the revision of the membership, if any.

8.3 Financial Report

At the end of each financial period, a financial report including an audited balance sheet and other financial statements shall be prepared and presented by the outgoing Financial Secretary to the Annual General Meeting for adoption.

8.4 Membership Fee

All membership fees are non-refundable.

8.5 Honorary Auditor

An Honorary Auditor of the Association shall be the current Residential Life Officer of UG Hall V (PG Hall II). The Honorary

Auditor shall audit the balance sheet and other financial statements of the Association.

8.6 Auditing

The Financial Secretary of the Association shall submit the Financial Report to the Honorary Auditor at least seven days before the Annual General Meeting for auditing purposes.

8.7 Bank Account

The bank account used for saving residential fee shall be operated by the Hall Affairs Vice-Chairperson and the Financial Secretary of the current Association session. All other bank accounts of the Association shall be operated by the Chairperson and the Financial Secretary for the current Association session.

PART IX: CONSTITUTION

9.1 Amendment

The Constitution can only be amended by a motion carried at a General Meeting or General Polling Notice of the proposed amendments. The proposed amendments shall be posted three days before the General Meeting or General Polling.

9.2 Interpretation

The interpretation of this Constitution shall rest with the Executive Committee of the Association unless revoked by a motion carried in a General Meeting or General Polling.

PART X: DISSOLUTION OF THE ASSOCIATION

10.1 Dissolution

The Association may only be dissolved by a resolution passed by more than seventy-five percent of the Full Members present at a General Meeting or more than seventy-five percent of valid votes supporting the dissolution at General Polling.

Upon dissolution, the Executive Committee is required to announce a full report stating clearly the current financial position of the Association within thirty days. An Extraordinary General Meeting shall be convened to discuss the arrangement of the remaining net assets, if any.

Appendix

1. Cheers

1.1 社五大把貨

社五係最醒

卓毅係最勁

社五卓毅無得頂

運動年年勝

音樂特別精

比賽表演有得傾

冠軍得一個

一定我地攞

你地包尾包尾輸左係咁多

你地係咁多

我地大把貨

社五嘅人 未驚過

1.2 卓毅人

我地唔做摺人

發揮團體精神

比賽攞 Champion

個個十項全能

做女嘅索到暈

做仔嘅撐到行

至醒係社五群

我地係 卓毅人

1.3 NDV

Give me an N! (N!)

Give me a D! (D!)

Give me a V! (V!)

NDV is Endeavour! Endeavour!

NDV is Endeavour! Endeavour!

2. Endeavour Song

For the laurel of our Endeavour, the greatest union.

Every member struggle for the best, never stops but goes ahead.

Glory to our House V Endeavour, set the spirit of the House.

Let us ready for the title of the greatest union.

We are Endeavour!

We are Champion!

We are Endeavour!

We are Champion!